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UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION IX RE(?\O ~~t-L r 

Docket No. 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) EPCRA 09-2011-0001 
) 

Clorox Products Manufacturing Company, ) 
) 

Respondent. 	 ) CONSENT AGREEMENT 
) AND 
) FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO 
) 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13 and 22.18 

----------------------------) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

A. 	 PRELJMfNARY STATEMENT 

I. 	 This is a civil administrative enforcement action initiated pursuant to Section 325 of the 

Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 CEPCRA"), 42 U.S.c. 

§ 11045, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative 

Assessment of Civil Penalties and the RevocationlTermination or Suspension of Permits 

("Consolidated Rules"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX. Respondent is Clorox Products 

Manufacturing Company, a cO'1'oration organized under the laws of the state of 

Delaware. 

2. 	 This CNFO, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13 and 22.18, simultaneously commences and 

concludes this proceeding, wherein EPA alleges that Respondent violated Section 312 of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 1J022, and its implementing regulations. 

B. 	 STATUTORY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

3. 	 Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022, and 40 C.P.R. Part 370, require the owner or 
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operator of a facility that is required to prepare or have available a material safety data 

sheet ("MSDS") for a hazardous chemical under the Occupational Safety and Health Act 

of 1970 ("OSHA"), 29 U.S.c. § 65 Let seq., to submit an annual emergency and 

hazardous chemical inventory form containing information on hazardous chemicals 

present at the facility during the preceding calendar year above the threshold levels 

established in 40 C.F.R. § 370.10. This in ventory must be submi ned by March 1 of each 

year to the State Emergency Response Commission ("SERC"), the Local Emergency 

Planning Committee ("LEPC"). and the fire department having jurisdiction over the 

facility. 42 U.S.c. § 11022(a); 40 C.F.R. §§ 370.32-370.33. 

C. 	 GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

4. 	 Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), authorizes the assessment of civil 

penalties for any violation Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022. 

5. 	 The Administrator of EPA has delegated enforcement authority under EPCRA to the 

Regional Administrators by EPA delegation 22-3-A. dated May 11, 1994. 

6. 	 The Regional Administrator, EPA Region lX, has delegated the authority to enforce 

Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022, to the Director of the Superfund Division 

with delegation R9 1290.18. 

7. 	 Respondent is, and at all times referred to herein was, a "person" as defined by Section 

329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(7). 

8. 	 The real property, including improvements thereto, located at 4333 Bandini Blvd., 

Vernon, in Los Angeles County, California (the "Facility"), is a "facility" as defined by 

Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(4). 

9. 	 At all times relevant to this CAfFO, the Facility used or stored chlorine. 

10. 	 Chlorine is an "extremely hazardous chemical" as defined in Sections 311(e) and 312(c) 

of EPCRA, 42 USc. §§ 11021 (e) and 11022(c), with a threshold planning quantity of 

100 pounds. 40 C.F.R. Part 355, App. A & B. 
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II. 	 At aU limes relevant to this CAJFO, Respondent has been the owner and operator of tRe 

Facility. 

12. 	 The SERC for California, the stale likely to be affected by a release from the Facility, is 

the California Emergency Management Agency, formerly known as the State Offiee of 

Emergency Services ("Cal EMA" ). 

13. 	 In California, the Certified Unified Program Agencies C'CUPA") have been delegated as 

the administering agencices for the requirement to report releases to the LEPC. 

14. 	 The City of Vernon fire Department i:s the fire department having jurisdiction over the 

Facility. 

~ 5. At all relevant times, the Faci ~ity is and was subject ito Section 312 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. 

§ I t022, aDd had extremely hazardous substances above the applicable thresholds 

established in 40' C.F.R. § 370.10. 

16. 	 EPA alleges that Respondent has violated Section 312 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § } 1022, 

and its implementing regulations. 

17. 	 Respondent is therefore sllbject to the powers vested in the EPA Administrator by Section 

325 of EPCRA, 42 {j .S.c. § 11045. 

D. 	 ALLEGED VIOLATlm§ 

COUNT I 

(Failure to Timely Submit Accurate Annual Chemical Inventory Ponns 

for Calendar Years 2006, 2007, and 2008) 

18. 	 Paragraphs 1 through 17 above arc incorporated herein by this reference as if they were 

set forth here in their entirety. 

19. 	 Respondent was required to subm~t an annual emergency and hazardous chemical 

inventory form containing accurate infonnation on chlorine present at the Facility during 

calendar years 2006,2007, and 2008 to the Cal EMA, the CUPA, and ~he City of Vernon 
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Fire Department on or before March 1 of the following years. 

20. 	 Respondent did not timely submit the annual emergency and hazardous chemical 

inventory form containing accurate information on chlorine present at the Facility during 

calendar years 2006, 2007, and 2008 to the Cal EMA, the CUPA, and the Los Angeles 

County Fire Department on or before March I of the following year. 

21 . Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent failed to timely submit the completed emergency 

and hazardous chemical inventory fonns to the SERC, the LEPC, and the fire department 

for reporting years 2006, 2007, and 2008 by March 1 of the following year, in violation of 

Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.s.c. § 11022. 

E. 	 CIVIL PENALTY 

22. 	 Section 325(e)(l) of EPCRA, 42 U.S .C. § 11045(c)(I), as adjusted by the Debt Collection 

Improvement Act of 1996, see 40 C.F.R. Part 19, authorizes a civil penalty ofl!P to 

THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($)7.500) per day for 

each day a violation of EPCRA 312 occurs after January 12,2009. See Table I of 40 

C.F.R. § 19.4, 73 Fed. Reg. 75,340 (Dec. 11,2008). 

23. 	 Based on the facts alleged herein and upon all the factors which the Complainant 

considers pursuant to the Enforcement Response Policy for Sections 304, 3 J I, and 312 of 

the Emergency Planning and Community Right-ta-Know Act and Section 103 of the 

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("ERP"), 

including the nature, extent, and gravity of the violations. the Respondent's ability to pay, 

prior history of vi olati OilS, degree of culpability, and any economic benefit. and such 

other matters as justice may require, the Complainant proposes that the Respondent be 

assessed, and Respondent agrees to pay TWENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($28,000) as the civil penalty for the violations alleged herein . The proposed penalty was 

calculated in accordance with the ERP. 
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F. 	 ADMISSIONS AND WAIVERS 

24. 	 For purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits and agrees that EPA has jurisdictioA 

and authority over the subject matter of the action commenced in this CMO and over . 	 . 
Respondent pursuant to Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S .C. § 11045, and 40 C.F.R. 

§§ 22.4 and 22.37. Further, for the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits to the 

general allegations of facts and taw set forth in Sections Band C of this CAIFO. 

Respondent consents 1'0 and agrees not to contest EPA's jurisdiction and authority to enter 

into and issue this CAIFO and to enforce its terms. Further, Respondent will not contest 

EPA'sjurisdictrion and authority to compel compliance with this CMO in any 

enforcement proceedings" ei,ther administrative or judicial, or to impose sanctions for 

violations of this CAIFO. 

25. Respondent neither admits noli' denies any allegations of fact or law set forth in Section D 

of this CAIFO. Responden, hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to contest the 

allegations set forth in this CA/FO, waives any rights Respondent may have to a hearing 

on any issue relating to the factual aUegations or legal conclusions set forth in this 

CAlFO, including without limitation a hearing pursuant to Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 

U.S.C. § 11045, and hereby consents to the issuance of this CAfFO without adjudication. 

In addition, Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to appeal the 

Final Order attached to this Consent Agreement and made part of this CA/FO. 

O. 	 P'ARTfES BOUND 

26. 	 Tbis CAJfO shaFl apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its agents, successors 

and assigns and upon all persons acting under or for Respondent, until such time as the 

civil penalty required under Section E has been paid in accordance with Section I, and 

any delays in performance and/or stipulated penalties have been resolved. At such time 
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as (hose matters are concluded" this CA/[O"O shall automatically terminate without the 

need for further action by any party, and shall constitute full settlement of the violations 

alleged herein. 

27. 	 No change in ownership or corporate, partnership or legal status relating to the Facihty 

will in any way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities under this CAIFO. 

28. 	 Until termination of this CAlFO, R-espondent shall give notice of this CA/FO to any 

sl!lccessor in interest prior to transfer of ownership or operation of the Facility and shall 

notify EPA within seven (7) days prior to such transfer. 

29. 	 The undersigned representative of Respondent hereby certifies that he or she is fully 

authorized by Respondent to enter into this CAlFO, to execute and to legaUy bind 

Respondent to it. 

H. 	 CERTIFICA TION OF COMPLIANCE 

30. 	 Upon signing this CAJFO, Respondent certifies to EPA th!J.t the Facility has ful'ly 

compli~d with the requiremems of Section 312 of EPCRA that formed the basis for the 

violations alleged in Section 0 above, and that tbe Facillity is now in compliance with the 

relevant current reporting obligations under Section 312 ofEPCRA. 

31. 	 The signatory for Respondent certifies under penalty of law that this certification of 

compliance is based upon true, accurate and complete information, which the si,gnatory 

can vel'ify personally or regarding whi'ch the signatory has inquired of the person or 

persons di'rectly responsible for gathering ,the information. 

I. 	 PAYMENT OF CIVIL PENALTY 

32. 	 Respondent hereby consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay a civil penalty of 

TWENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($28,000) in. settlement of the violations 

set forth in Section D above. Tbis Consent Agreement and Final Order constitute's a 
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settlement of all claims for the violations of Section 312 of EPCRA alleged in Section D 

above. 

Respondent shall pay the civil penalty within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of thi,s 

CAfFO, by sending a. check in the amount of TWENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($28,000), payable to ''Treasurer, United Stafes of America," to: 

u.s. Environmenta,11Protection Agency 

Region IX 

P.O. Box 371099M 

Pittsburgh, PA 15251 


The check shall reference the liIame and docket numbers of the CAIFO, and shall he 

accompanied by a cover letter stating that payment is being made pursuant to this CAIFO. 

The cover letter and civil' penalty shall be scnt by certified mail, retum receipt requested. 

Copies of the transmittals shall be sent ,to: 

Jos'hua Wirtschaner (ORC-3) 

Assistant Regional Counsel 

U.S. EPA, Region IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


and 

Regional Hearing Clerk (ORC-I) 
U.S. EPA, Region IX 

7S Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


33. 	 In accordance with the Debt Collection Act of 1982 and U.S. Treasury directive (TFRM 

6-8000), failure to send the penalty by the due date wiB result in imposition of interest 

from the efTective date of this CA/FO at the current interest rate published by the U.S. 

Treasury, as described al 40 C.F.R. § \3.11. In. addilion, a twelve percent (12%) per 

annum penalty will be applied on any principal amount not paid within ninety (90) days 

of the due date. 

34. 	 The penalties specified in this CAIFO shall represent civil penalties assessed by EPA and 
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shaH not be deducted by Respondent or any other person or entity for federal. ~tate or 

local taxation purpo~es. 

J. 	 DELA Y IN PERFORMANCE I STIPULATED PENALTIES 

35. 	 In the event Respondent fails to meet any requirement set forth in this CAlFO, 

Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties as set forth below. Compliance by Respondent 

shall include completion of any activity under this CAIFO in a manner acceptable to EPA 

and within the specified time schedules in and approved under this CA/FO. 

36. 	 For failure to submit a payment to EPA by the time required in this CA/FO: FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($SOO) per day for the first to fifteenth day of delay. ONE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1.000) per day for the sixteenth to thirtieth day of delay, and 

FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000) per day for each day of delay thereafter. 

37. 	 Stipulated penalties shall begin to a<.:cruc on the day after perfonnance is due, and shall 

continue to accrue through the final day until performance is complete. Respondent shall 

pay stipulated penalties within fifteen (IS) days of receipt of a written demand by 

Complainant fur slIch penalties. Payment of stipulated penalties shaH be made in 

accordance with the procedure set forth for payment of penalties in Section I of this 

CA/FO. 

38. 	 If a stipulated penaily is not paid in full, interest shaU begin to accrue on the unpaid 

balance at the end of the fifteen-day period at the current rate published by the United 

States Treasury. as described at 40 C.r-.R. §13,( 1. Complainant reserves the right to take 

any additional action, induding but not limited to, the imposition of civil penalties, to 

enforce compliance with this Agreement or with EPCRA and its implementing 

regulations. 

39. 	 The payment of stipulated penalties specified in this Section shall not be deducted by 

Respondent or any other person or entity lor federal, state or local taxation purposes. 
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K. 	 RESERV ATION OF RJGHTS 

40. 	 EPA expressly reserves all rights and defenses that it may have. 

41. 	 EPA hereby reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and 

remedies, both legal and equitable, including the right to require that Respondent perform 

tash in addition to those required by this CAfFO. EPA further reserves all of its statutory 

and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and remedies, both legal and equitable, which 

may pertain to :Respondcnt 's failure to ,comply with any of the requirements of this 

CAIFO, inc'luding without limitation, the assessment of penalties under Section 325 of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045. This CAfFO shall not be construed as a covenant not ,to sue, 

a release, waiveli or limitation ofany rights, remedies, powcrs or authorities, civil or 

criminal, which EPA has under EPCRA, or any other statutory, regulatory or common 

law enforcement authority of the United States .• except to the extent provided in 

paragraph 26 of this. CA/fO. 

42. 	 Compliance by Respondent wlith the terms of this CA/FO shall not relieve Respondent of 

its obligations to comply with any applicable local, state or federal laws and regulations. 

43,. The entry of this CAIFO and Respondent's consent to comply shall not limit or otherwise 

preclude EPA from taking additional enforcement actions should EPA determine that 

such actions arc warranted except as they relate to Respondent's liability for federal eivfl 

penairties for the specific aUege{} violations and facts as sel forth in Section D ofrhis 

CAfFO. Full payment of the penalty proposed herein shall resolve Respondent's liabBity 

for federal civil penalties foll' the violations and facts alleged herein. 

44. 	 ThieSCAIFO is not intended to 'be nor shall it be construed as a permit. This CAIFO does 

not :relieve Responden~ of any obligation to obtain and comply with any local, state or 

federal permits. 
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L. 	 OTI IER CLAIMS 

45. 	 Nothing in this CAlf0 shall constitute or be construed as a release from any other claim, 

cause of action or demand in law or equity by or against any person, firm, partnership, 

entity or corporation for any liability it may have arising out of or relating in any way to 

the generation, storage, treatment, handling. transportation, release, or disposal of any 

hazardous constituents, hazardous substances, hazardous wastes, pollutants, or 

contaminants found at, taken to, or taken from the Facility. 

M. 	 MISCELLANEOUS 

46. 	 This CNFO may be amended or modified only by written i:l.greement executed by both 

EPA and Respondent. 

47. 	 The headings in this CAIFO are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect 

interpretation of this CA/fO. 

48. 	 Each party shall bear its own e.ttomeys' fees, costs, and disbursements incurred in this 

proceeding. 

49. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22. I 8(b)(3) and 22.3 I (b), this CNFO shall be effective 

on the date that the Final Order contained in this CA/FO. having been approved and 

issued by either the Regional Judicial OfJicer or Regional Administrator, is filed. 

IT IS SO AGREED, 

I .' 
lI:Il/IO

t 

Date 	 Angela HIlt, Vice President - Secretary 

Clorox Products Manufacturing Company 


(I~~
\~ ~~ua ry' "'?C· \\. . a~\ . -/; r.. ./ 

~/l 	 ' r ,' . (.~ 

Date 	 Jane Diamond, Director 

Superfund Division 

United States Environmental Protection Agency, 
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FINAL ORDER 


IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order (EPA Docket No. 
EPCRA 09-2011-0001) be entered and that Respondent pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
TWENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($28,000). 

Date Steven JawgieJ 
Regional Judicial Offic r 
United States Environmen 
Region IX 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Docket No. EPCRA-09-2011-0001 

I hereby certify that the original copy of the foregoing CAFO with the 
Docket number referenced above, has been filed with the Region 9 Hearing 
Clerk and that a copy was sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. to: 

Gerald Johnston, President 

Clorox Products Manufacturing Company 


1221 Broadway, Suite 13 

Oakland, CA 94612 


O~115) /1 


Date ;t>1<; 	 Steven Armsey 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency. Region IX 
75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 





UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

CERTIFIED MAIL NO.: 7000 1670000931205306 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
In Reply Refer to: 

FEB 14,, 2011 Clorox Products Manufacturing Company 
48333 Bandini Blvd ., Vernon, CA 90058 

Gerald Johnson, President 
Director, EH&S 
Clorox Products Manufacturing Company 
1221 Broadway, Suite 13 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Re: Clorox Products Manufacturing Company 

Dear Mr. Johnson: 

Please find enclosed the fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAfFO) 
negotiated between the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX (EPA), and 
Clorox Products Manufacturing Company (Clorox). 

This CAiFO simultaneously commences and concludes the above-referenced proceeding 
concerning Clorox's violations of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 
(EPCRA) as alleged by EPA in the CAJFO. 

Clorox ' s prompt payment of the civil penalty assessed and completion of all tasks 
required by the CAJFO will close this case. If you have any questions regarding the EPCRA 
requirements governing operations at Clorox's Vernon, CA manufacturing facility, or which 
concern the proceedings terminated by the enclosed documents, please contact Jeremy Johnstone 
of my staff at (415) 972-3499. 

Sincerely, 

Jane Diamond 
Director 
Superfund Division 

Enclosures 




